


12/04/08 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
allows a variety of future land use categories for the subject property, including: Commercial, Retail, 
High Density Residential and Moderate Density Residential. Given the uses of adjacent properties, 
the Staff feels that medium density residential is a more appropriate future use designation.   
 
Councilmember Tony Jeter requested the item be placed back on the agenda for reconsideration by 
the City Council. 
 
For background purposes, we are attaching the Staff Report and minutes from case Z-FY-08-32 from 
the Planning and Zoning meeting, August 4, 2008. In that zoning case (since withdrawn, the applicant 
proposed a duplex development on both sides of Battle Drive.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Land Use Map 
P&Z Staff Report (Z-FY-08-32-A) 
P&Z Minutes (08/04/08) 
Ordinance   



SFA
   

510
1

31
97

31
99

524
7

527
5

4815

55
05

55
09

30
00

30
04

4305

4309

280
928

04
280

84404
440544134513

44124508

45024510

3020

32
31

4309

3008

3209
3201

31
09310

8

4407
4410

3202
3210

32
18

3301

33
09

4406

49085202

4410

4419

441
7

4411

4415

4600

33
09

33
19

491251005102

31
1532
02

32
12

32
20

5420

54
21

53
45

27
22

48
19

32
01

32
11

32
19

290629142922
3006

3006

3004
3002

3000

4513

4605

4609

4613

4701
4709

4713
4801

4809

4813

4718
4714 4710 4702

2809 2805

28
01

4614
4608

31
10

31
16

5301
540154

01
54

09

300
9

4520

2713 27
12 270427132716

4521 4511 4413 4317 4305

27
20

27
21

27
12 2704

55
11

50085016

3010

30
143005

45
09

30
11

5200

550
8

511
6

5102

510
6

5120

520
6

521
0

521
4

530
0

550
6

551
0

541
0

550
2

471-B

469-A469-F

469-E
470-A

470-C

474-D

588-D

469-G

471-C

588-E

471-C
469-G

588-D 588-B
474-D

588-D

588-A

473-A

473-C

473-D
472-A

472-B

2695-A

2691-A

2690-A

474A-B

474A-E

474A-A

474A-D

2690-A

474A-B

475A-B

2697-A

2695-A

475A-A

475A-C
BA

TT
LE

 DR

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

S G
EN

ER
AL

 BR
UCE

 DR

CHARTE
R OAK DR

MIDWAY RD

HURON DR

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

MIDWAY RD :1 inch = 400 feet

J Stone  07.21.08

Z-FY-08-32 21.49 Acres of Proposed Residences at Bird Creek

C, GR, SFA & MF2 to 2F  Zoning
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business park

Public/Institutional
Parks and Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

ZFY0832
Temple Boundary



        PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM       
 

 
08/04/08 
Item #4 

Page 1 of 2 
 
APPLICANT / DEVELOPMENT: Central Texas Interests 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Brian Mabry, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Z-FY-08-32-A Hold a public hearing to consider an amendment to the 
South Temple Comprehensive Plan to reflect Moderate Density Residential uses on 21.49 ± acres 
situated in the George Givens Survey, Abstract No. 345, with platted land recorded as Bird Creek 
Valley VI and Bird Creek Valley Phase 4-Plexes Phase III. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The applicant proposes a duplex development on both sides of Battle Drive.  The 
property is located within the boundaries of the South Temple Plan.  The South Temple Plan was 
adopted in 1998.  The future land use map shows a variety of future land use categories for the 
subject property, including: Commercial, Retail, High Density Residential and Moderate Density 
Residential.  
 
Future Land Use Plan 
The portions of the subject property designated High and Moderate Density Residential 
accommodate the requested zoning district.  The portions of the property designated Commercial and 
Retail do not. Since the plan was adopted in 1998, no nonresidential development has occurred on 
portions of the subjected property designated Commercial or Retail, so an amendment to the Future 
Land Use Map is warranted.  
 
Thoroughfare Plan 
Battle Drive is designated as collector road on the Thoroughfare Plan.  The South Temple Plan says 
that residential uses may be appropriate to front on collectors provided that access is managed.  Staff 
is working with the applicant through the platting process to provide rear lot access for many of the 
lots in the proposed subdivision.  The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan.  
 
Adequacy of Public Facilities 
The platting process with ensure that adequate public water and sewer lines will be provided for those 
portions of the property that do not currently have such services.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the future land use map amendment 
from Commercial, Retail, High Density Residential and Moderate Density Residential to Moderate 
Density Residential because: 

1. Lack of nonresidential development on the subject property warrants an amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map;  

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
3. Adequate public facilities will serve the site.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Land Use Map 
 



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

MONDAY, AUGUST 4, 2008 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
4. Z-FY-08-32-A   Hold a public hearing to consider an amendment to the 

South Temple Comprehensive Plan to reflect Moderate Density 
Residential uses on 21.5 ± acres situated in the George Givens Survey, 
Abstract No. 345, with platted land recorded as Bird Creek Valley VI and 
Bird Creek Valley Phase 4-Plexes Phase III.  (Applicant: Central Texas 
Instruments). 

 
 Mr. Tim Dolan, Planning Director, presented this item on behalf of Mr. 

Brian Mabry. Mr. Dolan presented a detailed Powerpoint and explained 
the area is being planned for a 2-Family or duplex subdivision and there’s 
a preliminary plat that has been submitted which shows 52 residential lots, 
essentially a doubled lot subdivision, double loaded on the street with 26 
lots either way.  The applicant is also aware of the soil condition settling in 
that area.  

 
 The aerial photograph shows some of the pictures around the area and 

the condition of Battle Drive, along with some of the gabions or rock 
retaining wall along the area.  Currently, three-fourths of the zoning 
already allows duplexes.  Staff recommended to the applicant to consider 
cleaning this up because in the Commercial, General Retail and MF2 
Zoning it already allows duplexes and the only area that is not is the area 
zoned SFA. 

 
 21 notices were mailed to area property owners and the notice was 

advertised in the local paper as required by Local Ordinance and State 
Law.  Out of the 21 notices, two (2) notices agreed to it and at least three 
(3) recommended opposition to this zoning case. 

 
 There are some existing sewer and water lines that would either be 

extended through the area as they did come enforce some type of 
subdivision platting.  The Battle Drive is designated on the thoroughfare 
plan as a collector road which is a minimum of 55 feet of right-of-way and 
the 36 feet of pavement.  Staff reviewed the zoning request and has 
recommended approval to combine the zoning from the MF2, Commercial, 
General Retail, Single Family Attached to 2-Family,subject to the request 
complying with the Future Land Use Plan, the Thoroughfare Plan and 
adequate public facilities to serve the site. 

 



 Vice-Chair Pope opened the public hearing asking anyone wishing to 
speak in favor or opposition to this item to address the Commission. 

  
 Mr. Wayne Pope, resident of 4713 Arrowhead Drive, addressed the 

Commission. Mr. Pope pointed out three (3) specific concerns: 1) he 
purchased the lot knowing he would be in a single family neighborhood 
and his back door neighbor in the future would be a single family home as 
well and he would like to keep it that way. 

 
 The rest of Battle is undeveloped.  Mr. Pope would prefer just to look back 

on single family houses versus a duplex or anything else that should go up 
and keep the neighborhood from becoming a transient neighborhood like 
duplexes and apartments tend to be and to keep it an established 
neighborhood like single family homes normally are. 

 
 2)  Battle is one of the worst roads in town. It collects water in areas that 

aren’t suppose to hold water and creates one lane traffic which has to 
swerve around.  Hopefully, if this is approved, the road is approved as 
well. 

 
3)  Mr. Pope indicated where it says SFA, it is the low spot of the 
neighborhood and becomes a holding area for water when it rains.  It 
slopes from the lower right hand corner back up to the left. The street is 
higher than where the houses are going to be built and the creek is higher 
than where the houses are going to be built.  The houses would be built 
some number of feet below street level and below creek level which 
concerns Mr. Pope since he backs up to it.  Where are they going to put 
that water?  If it knocks the dirt down going into the creek, it’s going 
upstream from where it enters the creek at this point. 
 

 Mr. Pope stressed again these issues are a big concern.  There are a lot 
of street water issues on this side of town already and it wouldn’t be fair to 
the 10 homeowners or so that live right next to it. 

 
 Mr. Howard Burkholtz, 4709 Arrowhead Drive, also spoke.  Mr. Burkholtz 

is Mr. Wayne Pope’s neighbor and built his home there in 1976.  Mr. 
Burkholtz echoed the same complaints Mr. Pope did.  His main concern is 
also the water.  About a year ago, the City dug a ditch between their two 
houses to control water from a subdivision that was built uphill and now 
runs down the street, down the hill, and into their front yards.  With all the 
construction on the Loop, the new mall, and the shopping area going on 
the Loop, there will be a lot more water coming down on us. The gabions 
that were shown on the pictures were put there about 20 years ago and 
really helped the erosion problem but will the City make sure to keep that 
area cleaned up.  If something were to be done downstream, there should 
be something to improve the drainage in Bird Creek.  When it gets just 



past Arrowhead, the cul-de-sac down there, where the gabions and the 
concrete ends, it’s just water and trees.  If something could be done with 
that, it would probably help control the water. 

 
 Mr. Burkholtz said there has been progress made, and things have to be 

built, but it is his feeling that it’s endangering the homes by doing all this 
without taking anything else into consideration like the flood control. 

 
 Mr. Dolan defers this issue to the Engineering Department for any 

clarification. 
 
 Mr. Michael Newman responds that they anticipate there would be some 

kind of mitigation, including possibly channel work downstream along the 
property where the creek is, to help get water to go through there and then 
whether or not there’s detention is required, that still remains to be seen 
and would be a study associated with the final plat. 

 
 Mr. Newman explains they just implemented the Flood Damage 

Prevention Ordinance and actually had drainage criteria that allowed to 
require one foot above, now we’ve got a Flood Plain Ordinance that’s up 
to date with that and with the current FEMA standards and is one foot 
above the base foot elevation or the 100 year. 

 
 Commissioner Talley inquires about Battle Drive? 
 
 Mr. Newman responds that they’ve looked at the Ordinance and typically, 

there’s a section that talks about upgrading roadways and that’s usually 
when they’re not of the right proportion but we can require developments 
contiguous to roadways to actually put up fiscal or do physical 
improvements to widen those roadways.  Since Battle Drive is already 
collector size in width street, it’s really on our list of projects that needs 
attention and Public Works is aware of its condition as well as other 
streets in the City. Currently, we do not have funding for any projects or 
will and/or maintenance of that street. 

 
 Vice-Chair Pope closes the public hearing. 
 
 Commissioner Secrest asks if the applicant is in attendance. Mr. Dolan 

responds they tried to contact the applicant to attend today’s meeting and 
have not heard anything that would have prevented applicant from 
attending. Mr. Dolan responds that the applicant’s name is Cy Long who 
submitted the project on behalf of the owners. 

 
 Commissioner Kjelland clarifies that it was City Staff who recommended 

clean up and not the applicant.  Mr. Dolan confirms this statement. Mr. 
Dolan also comments that the Ordinance that is currently written allows a 



lot of residential development of any type and here is the case for the 2-
Family, the duplex that can already occur in the GR, the Commercial, and 
the Multi-family. The applicant was asked as they were going through the 
process, to go ahead and look at the zoning for residential only and 
there’s still plenty of commercial area for the non-residential area for that 
area adjacent to General Bruce. 

 
 Vice Chair Pope asks Mr. Dolan if the Commission is being asked to 

approve an amendment to reflect a Moderate Density Residential use of 
the entire 21 ± acres, but the Commission could exclude, if they chose to 
do so, part of the acreage that are 2-Family or Single Family in the 
Comprehensive Plan and leave the rest alone. Mr. Dolan confirms that 
yes, if the Commission chose to do so. 

 
 Trudi Dill, Assistant City Attorney, brought up the fact that the Moderate 

Density Residential would still hold for the Single Family Attached. 
 
 Motion to recommend approval of Z-FY-08-32-A to amend the South 

Temple Comprehensive Plan to reflect Moderate Density Residential by 
Commissioner Secrest; seconded by Commissioner Martin. 

 
 Motion passed. (7/0) 
 
 



 1

 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

 
[PLANNING. Z-FY-08-32(A)] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CHOICES ’08, 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO REFLECT MODERATE DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL USES ON APPROXIMATELY 21.5 ACRES SITUATED IN THE 
GEORGE GIVENS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 345, WITH PLATTED LAND 
RECORDED AS BIRD CREEK VALLEY VI AND BIRD CREEK VALLEY 
PHASE 4-PLEXES PHASE III; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS,   THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves an amendment to the Choices ’08, Comprehensive Plan 

to reflect moderate density residential uses on approximately 21.5 acres situated in the George 
Givens Survey, Abstract No. 345, with platted land recorded as Bird Creek Valley VI and Bird 
Creek Valley Phase 4-Plexes Phase III, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes to 
the Future Land Use Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any 
such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 



 2

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 20th day of November, 2008. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading and Public Hearing on the 4th day of 

December, 2008. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

 
12/04/08 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tim Dolan, Planning Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-09-03: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from General Retail District to Two Family District on 15.6 ± 
acres of land situated partly in the R.M. Williamson Survey, Abstract No. 905 and partly in the George 
Givens Survey, Abstract No. 345, located along the north side of 205 Loop, east of Duke and Turley 
Drives. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its November 17, 2008 meeting, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 8/0 in accordance with staff recommendation to 
recommend approval of a zonING change from GR to 2F for the following reasons: 
 

1. The requested district allows the same uses as the existing district, but prohibits potentially 
incompatible nonresidential uses; 

2. The placement of the district complies with the purpose statement of the zoning district;  
3. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and  
4. Adequate public facilities will serve the property. 

 
Commissioner Barton was absent. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description, on first reading, and schedule second reading and final adoption for December 18, 2008. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Please refer to the Staff Report and draft minutes of case Z-FY-09-03, from the 
Planning and Zoning meeting, November 17, 2008.   
 
At its November 3, 2008 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 9/0 to table this case 
to the November 17th meeting due to objections from surrounding property owners and uncertainties 
regarding the plat for the property.  These issues have been addressed in the plat to the satisfaction 
of the applicant, surrounding property owners and City staff.  The P&Z approved the plat for the 
subdivision, The Greens on 205 Loop, at this meeting.   
 
The applicant proposes a subdivision with 49 two-family lots for a total of 98 dwelling units. While two-
family dwellings are already permitted in the GR zoning district, the new Comprehensive Plan 
recommends that the zoning district that most closely matches the proposed use be applied to the 
property.  






































